
 

 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK  
DAWN M. JONES, CITY CLERK  

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:                  MEMBERS OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

FROM:            DAWN M. JONES, CITY CLERK  

DATE:             MONDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2023 

SUBJECT:     AMENDED COMMITTEE MEETING NOTICE  

 

The following Common Council Committee Meetings have been scheduled for Monday, 

October 23, 2023:  

 

  

Council Chambers 

4th Floor County-City Building 

227 W. Jefferson Blvd. 

South Bend, IN 46601 

 

The Council Chambers will be Open to the Public or Members of the Public May Attend this 

Meeting Virtually via Microsoft Teams Meeting app here: https://tinyurl.com/10232023CC. 

   

3:30 P.M.   PERSONNEL & FINANCE CHAIRPERSON, NIEZGODKSI 

    

Bill No. 71-23 – Sewage Works (Wastewater) Bond Ordinance 

Bill No. 68-23 – 2024 Non-Bargaining Clerk Salary 

Ordinance (SUBSTITUTE) 

Bill No. 70-23 – Amending 2023 Teamster Salary Ordinance 

Bill No. 72-23 – Salary for the Common Council Members for Calendar Year 

2024   
4:00 P.M.   ZONING & ANNEXATION CHAIRPERSON, HAMANN 

https://tinyurl.com/CC052421
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371536/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371936/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371535/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371537/Page1.aspx


    
Bill No. 23-63 – Resolution Adopting a Fiscal Plan for the Airport-Moss 

Annexation Area 

  Bill No. 50-23 – A Zoning Ordinance for Property Located at 23114 

Lincolnway West – SUBSTITUTE BILL (PH ONLY) 

Council President Sharon L. McBride has called an Informal Meeting of the Council which 

will commence immediately after the adjournment of the Zoning and Annexation Committee 

Meeting. 

  

INFORMAL MEETING OF THE COMMON 

COUNCIL 
PRESIDENT, MCBRIDE 

  

         1. Discussion of Council Agenda 

         2. Update and Announcements 

         3. Adjournment 

  

 

 

 

cc: Mayor James Mueller 

     Committee Meeting 

     List Media 

   

 

 

NOTICE FOR HEARING AND SIGHT-IMPAIRED PERSONS 

Auxiliary Aid or Other Services may be Available upon Request at No Charge. 

Please give Reasonable Advance Request when Possible 

  

https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371935/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/370311/Page1.aspx


 

 

South Bend Common Council 

 

Meeting Agenda 
Monday, October 23, 2023 

7:00 PM 

 

***The South Bend Common Council meeting will be open to the public  

at the Council Chambers on the 4th floor of the County-City Building, 227 W. 

Jefferson Blvd., South Bend, IN 46601 

or available by way of a virtual meeting using the Microsoft Teams Meeting 

App. Public access to the meeting can be granted by this Microsoft Teams 

Link: https://tinyurl.com/10232023SBCC 
  

1. INVOCATION 

Pastor Jason Miller – South Bend City Church 

 

 

2.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

 

4. REPORT FROM SUB-COMMITTEE ON MINUTES 

 

 

5. SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

 

6. REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICES 

 

https://tinyurl.com/10232023SBCC


7. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

BILL NO. 

68-23  PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, FIXING 

MAXIMUM SALARIES AND WAGES OF DEPUTIES AND NON-

BARGAINING EMPLOYEES APPOINTED BY THE CITY CLERK OF 

THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 

2024 (SUBSTITUTE) 

 

  
 

70-23  PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, 

AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 10893-22, WHICH FIXED MAXIMUM 

WAGES OF TEAMSTER EMPLOYEES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023, 

TO CORRECT A SCRIVENER’S ERROR IN THE WAGE TABLES FOR 

THE EQUIPMENT SERVICES WORK GROUP, INCLUDE 

ADDITIONAL GROUP LEADER POSITION TITLES FOR THE 

VENUES PARKS & ARTS WORK GROUP, AND ADD NEW 

POSITIONS FOR THE WATER WORKS CUSTOMER SERVICE WORK 

GROUP 

  
 

71-23  PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, 

AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND 

INSTALLATION OF CERTAIN ADDITIONS, EXTENSIONS AND 

IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY’S SEWAGE WORKS; 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL REVENUE 

BONDS FOR SUCH PURPOSE IN THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO 

EXCEED THIRTY-SIX MILLION DOLLARS ($36,000,000) TO 

PROVIDE FUNDS FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE COSTS THEREOF; 

PROVIDING FOR THE SAFEGUARDING OF THE INTERESTS OF 

THE OWNERS OF SAID BONDS; ADDRESSING OTHER MATTERS 

CONNECTED THEREWITH, INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OF NOTES 

IN ANTICIPATION OF BONDS; AND REPEALING ORDINANCES 

INCONSISTENT HEREWITH 

  
 

72-23  PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, SETTING 

THE ANNUAL SALARY FOR THE COMMON COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

  
 

50-23  PUBLIC HEARING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, 

ANNEXING AND BRINGING WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF SOUTH 

https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371936/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371535/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371536/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371537/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/370311/Page1.aspx


BEND, INDIANA, AND AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 23114 LINCOLN WAY WEST, 

COUNCILMANIC DISTRICT NO. 1 IN THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND, 

INDIANA – SUBSTITUTE BILL (PH ONLY) 

 

  
 

 

 

8. RISE AND REPORT 

 

 

9. REGULAR MEETING RECONVENED  

 

 

10. BILLS ON THIRD READING 

BILL NO. 

68-23 THIRD READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, FIXING MAXIMUM 

SALARIES AND WAGES OF DEPUTIES AND NON-BARGAINING 

EMPLOYEES APPOINTED BY THE CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF 

SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

(SUBSTITUTE) 

  
 

70-23 THIRD READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, AMENDING 

ORDINANCE NO. 10893-22, WHICH FIXED MAXIMUM WAGES OF 

TEAMSTER EMPLOYEES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2023, TO 

CORRECT A SCRIVENER’S ERROR IN THE WAGE TABLES FOR 

THE EQUIPMENT SERVICES WORK GROUP, INCLUDE 

ADDITIONAL GROUP LEADER POSITION TITLES FOR THE 

VENUES PARKS & ARTS WORK GROUP, AND ADD NEW 

POSITIONS FOR THE WATER WORKS CUSTOMER SERVICE WORK 

GROUP 

  
 

71-23 THIRD READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, AUTHORIZING THE 

ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION OF 

CERTAIN ADDITIONS, EXTENSIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO 

THE CITY’S SEWAGE WORKS; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 

ADDITIONAL REVENUE BONDS FOR SUCH PURPOSE IN THE 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED THIRTY-SIX MILLION 

DOLLARS ($36,000,000) TO PROVIDE FUNDS FOR THE PAYMENT 

OF THE COSTS THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE SAFEGUARDING 

OF THE INTERESTS OF THE OWNERS OF SAID BONDS; 

ADDRESSING OTHER MATTERS CONNECTED THEREWITH, 



INCLUDING THE ISSUANCE OF NOTES IN ANTICIPATION OF 

BONDS; AND REPEALING ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT 

HEREWITH 

  
 

72-23 THIRD READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, SETTING THE 

ANNUAL SALARY FOR THE COMMON COUNCIL MEMBERS FOR 

CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

 

  
 

 

 

11. RESOLUTIONS 

BILL NO. 

23-63  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF THE 

SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, ADOPTING A WRITTEN FISCAL PLAN 

AND ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR THE PROVISION OF 

SERVICES TO AN ANNEXATION AREA IN GERMAN 

TOWNSHIP (AIRPORT-MOSS ANNEXATION AREA) 

 

  
 

 

 

12. BILLS OF FIRST READING 

BILL NO. 

74 - 23 FIRST READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED, 1023 QUIMBY 

STREET, COUNCILMANIC DISTRICT NO. 4 IN THE CITY OF SOUTH 

BEND, INDIANA 

  
 

75 - 23 FIRST READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 1119 

TWYCKENHAM DRIVE COUNCILMANIC DISTRICT NO. 4 IN THE 

CITY OF SOUTH BEND, INDIANA 

  
 

62 - 23 FIRST READING ON AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF THE SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, AN ORDINANCE TO 

VACATE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: PART OF THE 

SOUTH HALF OF THE SOUTWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, 

TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST OF THE 2ND PRINCIPAL 

MERIDIAN, PORTAGE TOWNSHIP, ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA 

BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 49 ON THE 

RECORDED PLAT OF NORTHWEST ADDITION 2ND PLAT IN THE 

https://docs.southbendin.gov/weblink/0,0,0/doc/371935/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371962/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371963/Page1.aspx
https://docs.southbendin.gov/WebLink/0/doc/371964/Page1.aspx


OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA; 

THENCE SOUTH 90°00’00” WEST ALONG THE SAID SOUTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.00 FEET; THENCE 

NORTH 0°05’13” WEST A DISTANCE OF 60.00 FEET TO THE 

NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID KING STREET; 

THENCE NORTH 90°00’00” EAST ALONG THE SAID NORTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 64.00 FEET TO THE POINT 

OF BEGGINING OF THE DESCRIPTION CONTAINING 3,840 

SQUARE FEET  

 

  
 

 

 

13. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 

14. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 

15. PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR 

 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

NOTICE FOR HEARING AND SIGHT-IMPAIRED PERSONS 

Auxiliary Aid or Other Services may be Available upon Request at No Charge. 

Please give Reasonable Advance Request when Possible 



County- City Building
227 W Jefferson Blvd Suite, 1200 N
South Bend, IN 46601

Phone
Email
Website

311 inside City limits
311@southbendin. gov
Southbendin. gov

James Mueller, Mayor

Filed in Clerk's Office

October 4, 2023

City of South Bend

Department ofAdministration & FinanceDivision ofHuman Resources
Ms. Sharon McBride, President
City of South Bend Common Council
227 W. Jefferson Boulevard, 4th Floor
South Bend, Indiana 46601

RE: Sewage Works (Wastewater) Bond Ordinance

Dear President McBride, 

F,021

The attached proposed ordinance authorizes the City to issue a bond anticipation note and revenue
bonds to fund certain additions and improvements to the municipal Sewage Works system of the City of
South Bend. The proposed bonds will be repaid from net revenues of the Sewage Works system and will
be issued in one (1) or more series, in an amount not to exceed thirty-six million dollars ($ 36,000,000). 

I will present this bill to the Common Council at the appropriate committee and Council meetings. It is
requested that this bill be filed for 1st reading on October 9, 2023 with 2nd reading, public hearing and
3rd reading scheduled for October 23, 2023. 

Thank you for your attention to this request. If you should have any questions, please feel to contact me
at 574-235-9822. 

Regards, 

Kyle Willis
City Controller

IN

BILL NO. 71-23













































































































































Filed in Clerk's Office

OCT 2 3 2023 

DAWN M. JONES CITY CLERK SOUTH BEND IN

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
DAWN M.JONES, CITY CLERK 

October 23, 2023 

The South Bend Common Council 
4th Floor County-City Building 
South Bend, Indiana 46601 

Re: Proposed 2024 City Clerk Staff Non-Bargaining Salary Ordinance (Substitute) 

Dear Council Members, 

Attached is an ordinance setting the maximum salary and wages of deputies and non-bargaining 
employees of the City Clerk's Office for the 2024 calendar year. 

I will present this bill to the Common Council at the appropriate committee and council meeting. It is 
requested that this bill be filed for 1 st reading on September 25, 2023 with 2nd reading, public hearing, 
and 3n1 reading scheduled for October 9, 2023. Please don't hesitate to let me know if you have any 
questions or require further information. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Respectfully, 

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 

CC: Office of the City Clerk 

INTEGR11YI SERVICE! ACCESSIBILl1Y 

VICTORIA A. TRUJILLO 
CHIEF DEPUTY/CHIEF OF STAFF 

SHAYLA Kl.\4JlROUGH 
DEPUTY/DIRECTOR OF PouCY 

EXCELLENCE I ACCOUNTABILl1Y I INNOVATION I INCLUSION I EMPOWERMENT
455 County-City Building I 227 W. Jefferson Blvd. I South Bend, Indiana 46601 Ip 574.235.9221 If 574.235.9173 I www.southbendin.gov

SUBSTITUTE BILL NO. 68-23 



SUBSTITUTE BILL NO. 68-23 

ORDINANCE NO. 10982-23 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING MAXIMUM SALARIES AND WAGES OF hi~ffl~~~~~~ 
NON-BARGAINING EMPLOYEES APPOINTED BY THE CITY CLERK OF THE 

CITY OF SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

ST A TEMENT OF PURPOSE AND INTENT 

Pursuant to Indiana Code§ 36-4-7-3(d), this Ordinance sets forth the maximum compensation to be 
paid to deputies and non-bargaining personnel appointed by the City Clerk of the City of South Bend 
for the calendar year 2024. 

This Ordinance establishes such compensation for all non-bargaining employees by specific position 
and title. The budgeted or actual compensation paid to a City employee in each position may be less 
than the maximum amounts set forth herein but may not exceed those amounts. 

This Ordinance is in the best interest of the City and the affected non-bargaining employees. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, as follows: 

Section I. Maximum Compensation 

The maximum amounts to be paid as compensation for non-bargaining employees for deputies and 
non-bargaining personnel appointed by the City Clerk of the City of South Bend are hereby 
established as set forth in the attachment, which is incorporated herein by reference. As City 
employees, these personnel are paid on a bi-weekly basis. Amounts by alphabetical position are set 
forth, as well as the maximum compensation for each position. 

Section II. Holidays, Vacations and Other Monetary and Fringe Benefits Incorporated by 
Reference 

(a) Holidays. Holidays designated by the Board of Public Works shall govern non
bargaining employees for the calendar year 2024. The provisions of the City' s 
Employee Handbook as it may be amended from time to time shall apply and are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

(b) Vacations. Vacation for non-bargaining employees shall be as set forth in the City' s 
Employee Handbook as it may be amended from time to time, incorporated herein by 
reference. 



(c) Family Leave. The Family and Medical Leave Act Policy is, hereby, incorporated 
herein by reference in its entirety. 

( d) Parental Leave. Parental leave will be offered to all eligible full-time employees in 
accordance with the policy adopted by the administration effective January 1, 2020. 
This policy may be amended from time to time and will be incorporated into the 
City's Employee Handbook. 

(e) Insurance. 

(1) Comprehensive Major Medical Insurance Program. The City shall 
maintain a comprehensive major medical insurance program in which, 
subject to Section III herein, non-bargaining employees regularly scheduled 
to work 30 hours or more per week may participate under the rules and 
guidelines of the plan document. All employees are provided access to a 
copy of a plan document each year. 

(2) Short and Long-Term Disability. Short and Long-Term Disability shall be 
as set forth in the City' s Employee Handbook, as it may be amended from 
time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

(3) Payment for Election to Leave Employer's Comprehensive Major 
Medical Insurance Program. The City shall pay one hundred and thirty 
($130) per month ($65 bi-weekly) to any Employee who elects to leave the 
City's comprehensive major medical insurance program to be covered by 
another program for which the City makes no contribution. This election 
shall not be mandatory, and the Employee who made such election may 
return to the City's comprehensive major medical Insurance Program, 
provided that the conditions are a Qualifying Life Event or Open Enrollment 
of the City's Comprehensive Major Medical Insurance Program, and the 
contributions specified herein are made, but in such event said Employee 
shall forfeit the one hundred and thirty dollar ($130) payment per month 
thereafter. 

(4) Life Insurance. The City shall provide term life insurance coverage in an 
amount 1 x annual salary rounded up to the nearest $1 ,000 for each benefit 
eligible employee except for Police and Fire which are at set forth in the 
collective bargaining agreement. Such insurance shall become effective upon 
the award of a group life insurance bid by the Board of Public Works, or 
upon the beginning of the plan year, whichever is later. 

(5) Benefit Waiting Period. The City notes that life insurance and 
comprehensive major Medical Insurance programs require a minimum 
eligibility period of thirty (30) days; and that the long-term disability 
program requires a minimum ninety (90) day eligibility period which must be 
met. 



(f) Hiring Bonus. The City Clerk, may, at his/her discretion, offer a Hiring Bonus to a 
new employee as an incentive for the employee to accept the position offered. This 
Bonus will be paid to the employee in addition to the salary set forth in the Salary 
Ordinance. The range of these monetary bonuses will be from one hundred ($100) to 
four thousand dollars ($4,000). 

(g) Early Retirement Incentives. The City Clerk shall have discretion to offer an early 
retirement incentive program that may take the form of a bonus upon retirement for 
years of service or assistance with health insurance for a retiree who is not Medicare 
eligible. Such assistance shall not exceed one (1) year. Any such bonus or 
assistance must be approved by the City Clerk and Controller and is subject to 
appropriation by the Common Council before any such bonus or assistance may be 
paid. 

LC. 5-10.2-3-1.2 permits employers to purchase one year for every five years of 
service for employees in PERF covered positions under certain conditions. The City 
Clerk shall have discretion to offer such early retirement incentive program, pursuant 
to statute, after consultation with the Controller and after appropriation by the 
Common Council. 

(h) Other Monetary Fringe Benefits. All other fringe benefits shall be as set forth in 
the City's Employee Handbook as it may be amended from time to time. 

Section III. Employee Definitions 

(a) Full-Time Employee. Full-time employees are those employees who are regularly 
scheduled to work forty ( 40) hours per week, or a reduced full-time schedule of thirty 
(30) hours or more per week as approved by the City Clerk on a voluntary basis. 
Such employees are eligible for the Employer's Benefits Package subject to the 
terms, conditions and limitations of each benefit program. However, solely for 
purposes of qualification for health care benefits under the federal Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act (the Act) as amended, the definition of full-time employee 
shall be the equivalent of that which is provided in the Act, and this Section shall not 
be construed to be in conflict with the Act. 

(b) Part-Time Employee. Part-time employees are those employees who are not 
assigned to a full-time status as defined by the City including those who qualify for 
health care benefits under the Act, but who do not meet the City ' s definition of full
time employee under subpart (a) of this Section, and who are scheduled to work less 
than the City of South Bend's full-time schedule, not to equal or exceed one 
thousand five hundred sixty (1 ,560) hours per year. While they do receive certain 
mandated benefits (such as worker ' s compensation, social security benefits, and for 
some, health care under the Act), they are not eligible for other City benefit programs 
with the exception of the positions listed below: 



All Attorneys employed in the City's Legal Department in part-time positions as well 
as all elected Council members are eligible for participation in all of the ·Employer' s 
Benefit Programs. 

Section IV. City's Employee Handbook Availability 

Two (2) copies of the City' s Employee Handbook shall be kept on file and made available for public 
inspection during regular hours in the office of the City Clerk on the 4th Floor of the County-City 
Building, South Bend, Indiana. 

Section v. Effective Date 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage by the Common Council 
and approved by the Mayor. 

Attest: 

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 

Sharon L. McBride, Council President 
South Bend Common Council 

Presented by me, the undersigned Clerk of the City of South Bend, to the Mayor of the City 
of South Bend, Indiana on the ___ day of _______ __ , 2023 , at ___ o'clock 

. m. 

. m. 

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 

Approved and signed by me on the _ __ day of _____ _, 2023 , at 

James Mueller, Mayor 
City of South Bend, Indiana 

o'clock . 



Fd-Dp-Ov-Sub Subdivision I Position 

2024 I IEtllmlllodl I AdjuS
t
m• nt 

1

410003 410004 
410005 

I Personnel I I 
2023 2024 (Increase or Adjusted Permanen 0verllme 

Status FTE Hourly or 1' -Change? Salary Cap Salary Cap Decrease to Salary t Part-
& Interns 

(leaf 
Salary ana-

Pickup) Cap) Time 

101-02-020-020 City Clerk NB-FT-Executive Asst/ Dir Sp Prj -Clerk NB 1 S 45,966 3.00% S 47,345 $ 47,345 47,345 47,345 

101-02-020-020 City Clerk NB-FT-Chief Deputy City Clerk NB 1 S 71,791 3.00% S 73,945 $ 73,945 73,945 660 74,605 

101-02-020-020 Ci ty Clerk NB-FT-Deputy City Clerk NB 1 $ 56,706 3.00% $ 58.407 $ 58,407 58,407 58,407 

101-02-020-020 City Clerk NON-BARGAINING OTHER NO $ 0.00% $ $ 4,000 4,000 

101-02-020-020 City Clerk PART·TIME PT $ 0.00% $ $ 14.423 

4 14.423 179,697 4,000 660 184,357 



BILL NO. 68-23 
Filed in Clerk's Office 

I 

DAWN M. JONES 
CITY CLERK, SOUTH BENO, IN 

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
DA\V>I NLjo:--:Es, CITY CLERK

September 20, 2023 

The South Bend Common Council 
4th Floor County-City Building 
South Bend, Indiana 46601 

Re: Proposed 2024 City Clerk Staff Non-Bargaining Salary Ordinance 

Dear Council Members, 

Attached is an ordinance setting the maximum salary and wages of deputies and non-bargaining 
employees of the City Clerk's Office for the 2024 calendar year. 

I will present this bill to the Common Council at the appropriate committee and council meeting. It is 
requested that this bill be filed for 1 st reading on September 25, 2023 with 2nd reading, public hearing, 
and 3rd reading scheduled for October 9, 2023. Please don't hesitate to let me know if you have any 
questions or require further information. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 

CC: Office of the City Clerk 

INTEGRITY/ SERVICE/ ACCESSIBILITY 

VICTORIA A. TRl]ll.l.O 

CHIEF DEPCTY/CHIEF OF STAFF 

SHAYL\ KnrnROL:CH 

DEPlTY/DmH:TOK OF PoucY 

EXCELLENCE I ACCOUNTABILITY/ INNOVATION/ INCLUSION / EMPOWERMENT 
455 County-City Building I 227 W. Jefferson Blvd. I South Bend, Indiana 46601 Ip 574.235.9221 If 574.235.9173 I www.southbendin.gov













1200N COUNTY- CITY BUILDING
227 W. JEFFERSON BLVD. 
SOUTH BEND, INDIANA 46601- 1830

PHONE 574. 235. 9216
FAX 574.235.9928

CITY OF SOUTH BEND, IN JAMES MUELLER, MAYOR

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

October 4, 2023

Mrs. Sharon McBride
President, South Bend Common Council
4th Floor, County- City Building
South Bend, IN 46601

RE: Teamster 2023 Salary Ordinance

Dear President McBride: 

Filed in Clerk's Office

FMTirO eQO:Pffice

OC1 0 3 2023
DAWN M. JONES

CITYCLERK SOUTH BEND IN

Attached is an ordinance to amend the salary ordinance setting the salaries for City employees that are members
of the Teamsters for the calendar year 2023

This bill will correct an error in the wage tables for the Equipment Services Work Group, include additional
Group Leader position titles for the Venue Parks & Arts Work Group, and add new positions for the Water
Works Customer Service Work Group. 

I will present this bill to the Common Council at the appropriate committee and council meetings. If you have
any further questions or need additional information, please let me know. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Kyle Willis
City Controller

BILL NO. 70-23







Filed in Clerk' s Office

City of South Bend OCT 0 3 2023
r

2022 - 2024 Teamster Employee Wage Ordinance

Position Maximum HourlyPayRate Levels DAWN M. JONES
CITY CLERK SOI,'7H BEND IN

Pay Rate
Increase

New Position 2. 50%  2. 00%  2. 00%

Position 2021 Rate
2021 Equiv.    

2022 Rate 2023 Rate 2024 Rate
Rates`

Neighborhood Services Division

NEAT Crew Operator 18. 56 19. 58 20. 07 20. 47 20. 88

Equipment Services Division

Building Maintenance 18. 28 18. 28 18. 74 19. 11 19. 49

Body Repair IV 20. 27 20. 27 20. 78 21. 19 21. 62

Body Repair V 21. 39 21. 39 21. 92 22. 36 22. 81

General Laborer( Janitor) 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17. 52 17. 87

Machinist IV 20. 27 22. 78 23. 35 23. 82 24. 29

Machinist V 21. 42 25. 43 26. 07 26. 59 27. 12

Mechanic III 19. 72 20. 72 21. 24 21. 66 22. 10

Mechanic IV 20. 78 22. 78 23. 35 23. 82 24. 29

Mechanic V 22. 43 25. 43 26. 07 26. 59 27. 12

Parts Clerk I 18. 24 18. 24 18. 70 19. 07 19. 45

Parts Clerk II 18. 79 18. 79 19. 26 19. 64 20. 04

Police Division

Police Facility Operations Technician I 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17. 52 17. 87

Police Facility Operations Technician II 18. 28 18. 28 18. 74 19. 11 19. 49

Police Facility Operations Technician III 21. 40 21. 40 21. 94 22. 37 22. 82

Solid Waste Division

Driver 18. 98 20. 75 21. 27 21. 69 22. 13

Streets& Sewers Division

Street Work Group
Equipment Operator I 17.66 17. 66 18. 10 18. 46 18. 83

Equipment Operator II 18. 29 18. 29 18.75 19. 12 19. 50

Equipment Operator III 19. 00 19. 00 19.48 19. 86 20. 26

General Laborer 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17. 52 17. 87

Heavy Equipment Operator I 19. 71 19. 71 20.20 20. 61 21. 02

Heavy Equipment Operator II 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Job Leader 20. 79 20. 79 21. 31 21. 74 22. 17

Traffic and Lighting Work Group

Group Leader- Traffic& Lighting 19. 30 19. 30 19. 78 20. 18 20. 58

Operations Technician 18. 54 18. 54 19. 00 19. 38 19. 77

Operations Technician- Job Leader 20. 79 20. 79 21. 31 21. 74 22. 17

Sign Artist 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Sign Artist- Job Leader 20. 79 20. 79 21. 31 21. 74 22. 17

Signal Technician I 19. 21 19. 21 19. 69 20. 08 20. 49

Signal Technician II 20. 06 20. 06 20. 56 20. 97 21. 39

Signal Technician II- Job Leader 21. 25 21. 25 21. 78 22. 22 22. 66

Electrician 21. 94 21. 94 22. 49 22. 94 23. 40

Sewer Work Group
Concrete Finisher 20. 54 20. 54 21. 05 21. 47 21. 90

Concrete Finisher Apprentice 18. 54 18. 54 19. 00 19. 38 19. 77

Heavy Equipment Operator I 19. 71 19. 71 20. 20 20. 61 21. 02

Job Leader 21. 25 21. 25 21. 78 22. 22 22. 66

Operator I 17. 66 17. 66 18. 10 18.46 18. 83

Operator II 18. 29 18. 29 18. 75 19. 12 19. 50

Operator III 19. 00 19. 00 19. 48 19. 86 20. 26



City of South Bend
2022 - 2024 Teamster Employee Wage Ordinance

Position Maximum Hourly Pay Rate Levels
Pay Rate
Increase

New Position 2. 50%  2. 00%  2.00%

Position 2021 Rate
2021 Equiv.    

2022 Rate 2023 Rate 2024 Rate
Rates*

Utilities Division

Organic Resources Work Group
Heavy Equipment Operator I 19. 71 19. 71 20. 20 20. 61 21. 02

Heavy Equipment Operator II 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Job Leader 21. 08 21. 08 21. 61 22. 04 22. 48

Wastewater Work Group
CSO Rep I 19. 38 19. 38 19. 86 20. 26 20. 67

CSO Rep II 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Dewater Operator 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Sanitation Operator 17. 62 17. 62 18. 06 18. 42 18. 79

General Laborer 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17. 52 17. 87

Janitor 16. 88 16. 88 17. 30 17. 65 18. 00

Lift Station- Rep I 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Lift Station- Rep II 21. 05 21. 05 21. 58 22. 01 22. 45

Maintenance Electrician I 19. 02 19. 02 19. 50 19. 89 20. 28

Maintenance Electrician II 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Maintenance Electrician III 21. 05 21. 05 21. 58 22. 01 22. 45

Maintenance Electrician IV 21. 89 21. 89 22. 44 22. 89 23. 34

Maintenance Electrician V 23. 23 23. 23 23. 81 24. 29 24. 77

Maintenance Lead 23. 55 23. 55 24. 14 24.62 25. 11

Maintenance Repair I 19. 38 19. 38 19. 86 20. 26 20. 67

Maintenance Repair II 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Maintenance Repair III 21. 05 21. 05 21. 58 22. 01 22.45

Maintenance Repair IV 21. 89 21. 89 22. 44 22. 89 23. 34

Operator- General 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Operator- Lead 23. 55 23. 55 24. 14 24. 62 25. 11

Operator- Senior 21. 05 21. 05 21. 58 22. 01 22.45

Water Works Division

Billing& Account Specialist I 22. 20 22. 64

Billing& Account Specialist II 22. 72 23. 17

Customer Service& Billing I 18. 09 18. 80 19. 27 19.66 20. 05

Customer Service& Billing II 18. 80 19. 27 19. 75 20. 15 20. 55

Customer Service& Billing III 19. 27 20. 82 21. 34 21. 77 22. 20

Customer Service& Billing IV 21. 23 21. 23 21. 76 22. 20 22. 64

Customer Service& Billing V 21. 73 21. 73 22. 27 22. 72 23. 17

Data Processor 19. 27 19. 27 19. 75 20. 15 20. 55

Field Repairman/ Inspector I 17. 97 17. 97 18. 42 18. 79 19. 16

Field Repairman/ Inspector II 18. 66 18. 66 19. 13 19. 51 19. 90

Field Repairman/ Inspector III 19. 73 19. 73 20. 22 20. 63 21. 04

Field Repairman/ Inspector IV 20. 00 20. 00 20. 50 20. 91 21. 33

Field Repairman/ Inspector V 20. 25 20. 25 20. 76 21. 17 21. 59

General Laborer 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17. 52 17. 87

Heavy Equipment Operator I 19. 71 19. 71 20. 20 20. 61 21. 02

Heavy Equipment Operator II 20. 44 20. 44 20. 95 21. 37 21. 80

Job Leader- Construction& Maintenance 20. 75 21. 25 21. 78 22. 22 22. 66

Machinist 20. 00 20. 00 20. 50 20. 91 21. 33

Operations& Maintainence Tech I 17. 24 19. 34 19. 82 20. 22 20.62

Operations& Maintainence Tech II 18. 34 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Operations& Maintainence Tech III 19. 49 21. 05 21. 58 22. 01 22. 45

Lead Operations& Maintainence Tech 23. 55 23. 55 24. 14 24. 62 25. 11

Operator I 17. 66 17. 66 18. 10 18. 46 18. 83



City of South Bend
2022 - 2024 Teamster Employee Wage Ordinance

Position Maximum Hourly Pay Rate Levels
Pay Rate
Increase

New Position 2. 50%  2. 00%  2. 00%

Position 2021 Rate
2021 Equiv.    

2022 Rate 2023 Rate 2024 Rate
Rates*

Operator II 18. 29 18. 29 18. 75 19. 12 19. 50

Venues Parks& Arts Division

Arborist I 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Arborist II 21. 94 21. 94 22. 49 22. 94 23. 40

Arborist/ Weed Control 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Asst. Greens Superintendent 19. 71 19. 71 20. 20 20. 61 21. 02

Athletic Field Maintenance 18. 39 18. 39 18. 85 19. 23 19. 61

Building Maintenance- Custodian& Laborer 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17.52 17. 87

Building& Structural Maintenance I 21. 17 21. 17 21. 70 22. 13 22. 58

Building& Structural Maintenance II 21. 94 21. 94 22. 49 22. 94 23. 40

Construction Maintenance/ Carpenter I 20. 51 20. 51 21. 02 21. 44 21. 87

Construction Maintenance/ Carpenter II 21. 17 21. 17 21. 70 22. 13 22. 58

Construction Maintenance/ Carpenter III 21. 94 21. 94 22. 49 22. 94 23. 40

Construction Maintenance/ Mason 21. 17 21. 17 21. 70 22. 13 22. 58

Construction Maintenance/ Welder 21. 17 21. 17 21. 70 22. 13 22. 58

Electrician- Park 21. 94 21. 94 22. 49 22. 94 23. 40

Equipment Operator II- Park 18. 19 18. 19 18. 64 19. 02 19. 40

General Laborer 16. 76 16. 76 17. 18 17. 52 17. 87

Group Leader- Recreation 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Street Island 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Leeper 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Centralized Mowing 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Co Line Trail 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Howard Park 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Plaza 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Group Leader- Custodian 19. 42 19. 42 19. 91 20. 30 20. 71

Head Custodian 17. 49 17. 49 17. 93 18. 29 18. 65

Heavy Equipment Operator I 19. 71 19. 71 20. 20 20. 61 21. 02

Heavy Equipment Operator II 20. 19 20. 19 20. 69 21. 11 21. 53

Job Leader 20. 75 20. 75 21. 27 21. 69 22. 13

Job Leader- Mower Shop 20. 75 20. 75 21. 27 21. 69 22. 13

Mechanic IV- Park- Garage 20. 26 20. 26 20. 77 21. 18 21. 61

Mechanic IV- Park- Golf 20. 26 20. 26 20. 77 21. 18 21. 61

Operator I 17. 66 17. 66 18. 10 18. 46 18. 83

Painter IV 19. 93 19. 93 20. 43 20. 84 21. 25

Plumber IV- Park 21. 94 21. 94 22. 49 22. 94 23. 40

2021 Equivalent Rates are listed for purposes of calculating rates in 2022- 2024 only and do not represent wages paid to
employees during 2021.









Sharon L. McBride
President

Sheila Niezgodski
Vice-President

Canneth Lee
Chairperson, Committee
of the Whole

Canneth Lee
FirstDistrict

Henry Davis, Jr. 
Second District

Sharon L. McBride
Third District

Troy Warner
Fourth District

EliWax
Fifth District

Sheila Niezgodski
Sixth District

Karen L. White
At Large
Rachel Tomas Morgan
At Large
Lori K. Hamann
At Large

City of South Bend
Common Council

574) 235- 9321
Fax (574) 235- 9173

IDD (574) 235-5567
http:// www.southbendin. gov

441 County- OtyBuilding • 227 W. Jefferson Blvd
South Bend, Indiana 46601

October 4, 2023 r - 1%11\\ e· s  1
I 1e\  4 - nt?r ?ftSouthBend Common Council

4th Floor, County- City Building
South Bend, IN 46601 \ DAWN M. JONES

Cl CL R,.?- 2U BEND, I.

Re: AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SOUTH BEND, INDIANA SETTING THE ANNUAL
SALARY FOR THE COMMON COUNCIL MEMBERS FOR
CALENDAR YEAR 2024

Dear Council Members: 

I am attaching the proposed Common Council Salary Ordinance forfiling. As you
know, this ordinance is a part of the City budget which must be approved before
November 1, 2023. 

This ordinance proposes a 3 % increase in Council members' salary from $21,320 to
21,960. This increase is in line with proposed increases for manyother City

employees. 

In order to comply with the necessary three readings and public hearing, I ask that
this be scheduled for first reading on October 9, 2023, and assigned to the
Personnel and Finance Committee forsecond reading, followed by third reading
and public hearing at the full Council meeting on October 23, 2023. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely yours, 

Sharon McBride, President, 
South Bend Common Council

BILL NO. 72-23







FHB      r: iied in Clerk' s   . w

47\\     OCT 16 2023
w  \\'

PE CE',,,'_ i

L DAWN M. JOt
CITY CLERK, SOUTh

x

1865

CITY OF SOUTH BEND
CvvU \ ITY I \ V= STv7\ T

October 16, 2023

Sharon L. McBride, President

South Bend Common Council

4th Floor, County-City Building

RE: A Resolution of the Common Council of the City of South Bend, Indiana,
Adopting a Written Fiscal Plan and Establishing a Policy for the Provision of
Services to an Annexation Area in German Township (Airport-Moss Annexation
Area)

Dear President McBride:

I am attaching for filing the above resolution, which is a companion to Bill No. 50-23.
That bill proposes to voluntarily annex contiguous territory in German Township to the
City of South Bend. This resolution provides for the Common Council' s adoption of the
written plan and policy concerning the provision of services, both capital and non- capital,
to the territory to be annexed.

This 2. 9- acre annexation area contains one parcel at the southeast corner of old
Lincolnway West and Moss Road, plus adjacent right-of-way. All public improvements,
if any, will be required to be done at the expense of the developer.

I request that the attached resolution be placed on the agenda of the October 23, 2023,
Common Council meeting at which the companion bill is given Second Reading.  I will
be attending the meeting, as well as the Zoning& Annexation Committee hearing, as the
presenter.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at( 574) 235- 5843. Thank you.

Sincerely,

14444j 9-.1.4,
Michael P. Divita

Principal Planner

EXCELLENCE I ACCOUNTABILITY I INNOVATION I INCLUSION I EMPOWERMENT
1400S County- City Building! 227W. Jefferson Bvld.! South Bend, Indiana 46601 i p 574. 235. 9371 1 www.southbendin.gov

BILL NO. 23-63



Filed in Clerk' s Offic'

BILL NO. 23- 63

OCT 1 6 2023
RESOLUTION NO. 5060- 23

DAWN M. JONES
CITY CLERK, SOUTH BEND, Its

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, ADOPTING A WRITTEN FISCAL PLAN AND

ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES TO AN

ANNEXATION AREA IN GERMAN TOWNSHIP

AIRPORT- MOSS ANNEXATION AREA)

WHEREAS, there has been submitted to the Common Council of the City of South Bend,
Indiana, an Ordinance and a petition by all( 100%) property owners which proposes the annexation
of real estate located in German Township, St. Joseph County, Indiana, which is more particularly
described at Section I of this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the territory proposed to be annexed encompasses approximately 2. 9 acres
of vacant land, which property is at least 12. 5% contiguous to the current City limits, i.e., 26.2%
contiguous, generally located at the southeast corner of old Lincolnway West and Moss Road
23114 Lincolnway West). It is anticipated that the annexation area will be used for a car wash

and detailing facility for car rental businesses; and

WHEREAS, this development will require a basic level of municipal public services of a
non- capital improvement nature, including police and fire protection, street and road maintenance,
street sweeping, flushing, snow removal, and sewage collection, as well as services of a capital
improvement nature, including street and road construction, sidewalks, street lighting, a sanitary
sewer system, a water distribution system, and a storm water system and drainage plan; and

WHEREAS, the South Bend Common Council now desires to establish and adopt a fiscal

plan and establish a definite policy showing: ( 1) the cost estimates of services of a non- capital

nature, including police and fire protection, street and road maintenance, street sweeping, flushing,
and snow removal, and sewage collection, and other non-capital services normally provided within
the corporate boundaries; and services of a capital improvement nature including street and road
construction, street lighting, a sanitary sewer extension, a water distribution system, and a storm
water system to be furnished to the territory to be annexed; ( 2) the method( s) of financing those
services; ( 3) theplan for the xtensi n h e rvi 4and extension ofthose services;      that services of a

non- capital nature will be provided to the annexed area within one( 1) year after the effective date
of the annexation, and that they will be provided in a manner equivalent in standard and scope to
similar non- capital services provided to areas within the corporate boundaries of the City of South
Bend, regardless of similar topography, patterns of land use, and population density; ( 5) that

services of a capital improvement nature will be provided to the annexed area within three ( 3)
years after the effective date of the annexation within the same manner as those services are
provided to areas within the corporate boundaries of the City of South Bend regardless of similar
topography, patterns of land use, or population density, and in a manner consistent with federal,

1



state and local laws, procedures, and planning criteria; and ( 6) the plan for hiring the employees
or other governmental entities whose jobs will be eliminated by the proposed annexation.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section I. It is in the best interest of the City of South Bend and the area proposed to be
annexed that the following described real property located in German Township, St. Joseph
County, Indiana, be annexed to the City of South Bend:

A part of the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 38 North,
Range 2 East, German Township, St. Joseph County, Indiana, being more particularly
described as follows:

Beginning at the intersection of( 1) the east line extended of Parcel II, as described in
Deed Record# 0838215 in the office of the St. Joseph County Recorder, which is also the
centerline of the former Kensington Avenue, as shown on the recorded plat of Ira V.
Carpenter' s Subdivision as recorded in Book 16, Page C, and( 2) the north right ofway
line of old Lincolnway West; thence south along said east line extended and said
centerline 318. 90' to the southeast corner of said Parcel II, which is also on the west line

of land described in Deed Record 1707578; thence West 346. 5 feet to the southwest

corner of said Parcel II and the centerline of Moss Road, as shown on said Ira V.

Carpenter' s Subdivision, and the east line of land described in Deed Record# 104981;

thence North along said centerline and said east line and said east line extended a
distance of 430. 10 feet to said north right of way line of old Lincolnway West; thence
Southeast along said north right of way line a distance of 389. 86 feet to the point of
beginning of this description. Containing 2. 93 acres, more or less.

Section II.  It shall be and hereby is now declared and established that it is the policy of
the City of South Bend, to furnish to said territory services of a non- capital nature, such as police
and fire protection, street and road maintenance, street sweeping, flushing, and snow removal,
within one ( 1) year of the effective date of the annexation in a manner equivalent in standard and
scope to services furnished by the City to other areas of the City regardless of similar topography,
patterns of land utilization, and population density; and to furnish to said territory, services of a
capital improvement nature such as street and road construction, sidewalks, a street light system,

a sanitary sewer system, a water distribution system, a storm water system and drainage plan,
within three( 3) years of the effective date of the annexation in the same manner as those services
are provided to areas within the corporate boundaries of the City of South Bend regardless of
similar topography, patterns of land use, or population density.

Section III. The South Bend Common Council, shall and does hereby now establish and
adopt the Fiscal Plan, attached hereto and fully incorporated herein as Exhibit " A", and made a

part hereof, for the furnishing of said services to the territory to be annexed, which provides, among
other things, that the public sanitary sewer and water network is available with capacity sufficient

2



to service this area with costs for extensions, any improvements in sewer or water capacity, and a
City- approved drainage system to be paid for by the developer, all in compliance with state and
local law; that no additional street lighting will be necessary and any future lighting especially of
a decorative nature or with underground wiring will be at the developer/ owner' s expense; that no
new roads or streets will be required.

Section IV. Sidewalks should be provided along public streets as required and must
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act( ADA) under the PROWAG standards.

Section V. It is required as a condition of annexation that any future improvements or

alterations to the property meet the City of South Bend' s building, zoning, and subdivision
requirements.

Section VI. This Resolution shall be effective from and of the date of adoption by the
Common Council.

Sharon McBride, Council President

South Bend Common Council

Attest:

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk

Presented by me, the undersigned Clerk of the City of South Bend, to the Mayor of the
City of South Bend, Indiana on the day of 2023, at

o' clock      . m.

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk

Approved and signed by me on the day of 2023, at o' clock m

James Mueller, Mayor

City of South Bend, Indiana

3 Filed in Clerk' s

O C T 16 2023

DAWN M. . 1t?
CITY CLERK, SOU 1" H



Exhibit " A"

Filed in Clerk' s Office

O C T 1 6 2023

THE CITY OF SOUTH BEN LEwN
M.

uTH BCITY CLERK, SOUTH BENC), IN ,

FISCAL PLAN

AIRPORT- MOSS

ANNEXATION AREA

Prepared by
City of South Bend

Department of Community Investment

September 25, 2023



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION I. INTRODUCTION 3

SECTION II.       GENERAL DATA 3

A.      Location

B.      Legal Description

C.      Contiguity
D.     Size of Annexation Area

E.      Buildings & Land Use

F.      Zoning& Subdivisions

G.      Population

H.     Tax Rate & Impact

I.       Parcel Ownership & Assessments

J.       Municipal Legislative District

K.      Hiring Plan

SECTION III.      MUNICIPAL SERVICES 6

A.      Public Works

B.      Police Department

C.      Fire Department & EMS

D.      Neighborhood Services & Enforcement

E.      Environmental Services

F.      Administrative Services

SECTION IV.      LAND USE ANALYSIS & DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA 10

SECTION V.       FISCAL IMPACT 11

Fiscal Impact: TABLE 1

Legal Description 13

Map: MAP 1 14



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 3

SECTION I.  INTRODUCTION

This Fiscal Plan represents the City of South Bend' s ( hereinafter, " City") policy for the

annexation of property in German Township, St. Joseph County, Indiana ( hereinafter,
Annexation Area"), and was developed through the cooperative efforts of the following City

Departments:

Legal Department

Department of Public Works

South Bend Fire Department

South Bend Police Department

Department of Community Investment
Department of Administration & Finance

SECTION II. GENERAL DATA

A.   Location

The Annexation Area is located at the southeast corner of old Lincolnway West and Moss Road
23114 Lincolnway West [ old US 20]).  See Map 1.

B.  Legal Description

The Annexation Area is part of the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township
38 North, Range 2 East, in German Township, St. Joseph County, Indiana.  For a complete

legal description, see Page 13.

C.   Contiguity

The Annexation Area is at least 1/ 8 ( 12. 5%) contiguous to the current City limits:

Contiguous 389. 86 feet 26. 2%

Non- Contiguous 1, 095. 50 feet 73. 8%

Total 1, 485. 36 feet 100. 0%

D.   Size of Annexation Area

The Annexation Area is approximately 2. 9 acres.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 4

E.   Buildings & Land Use

The Annexation Area contains vacant land. A car wash and detailing facility for car rental
businesses at the airport is proposed for the land.

F.   Zoning& Subdivisions

The one property in the Annexation Area is currently zoned C Commercial District in St. Joseph
County.  With the annexation petition, the petitioner seeks to rezone the land to I Industrial
District in the City. The Annexation Area does not fall within any subdivision of record.

G.    Population

No people currently reside in the Annexation Area. After development, no residents are
proposed to live in the Annexation Area.

H.   Tax Rate & Impact

The tax rates used are those of 2022 payable 2023. The total tax rate for unincorporated
German Township is 2.4383 per $ 100 of taxable real estate.  The total tax rate for South

Bend German Township is 5. 2560 per $ 100 of taxable real estate.

Per State law, the tax caps expressed as a percentage of the gross assessed value for
different classifications of property are as follows, regardless of the property' s location being
within South Bend or unincorporated St. Joseph County:

Property Type Cap
Homestead Residential 1. 0%

Non- Homestead Residential 2. 0%

Agricultural 2. 0%

Other ( Commercial)   3. 0%

For at least the four years after the effective date of the annexation, the expected tax rates,
tax levies, expenditure levels, service levels, and annual debt service payments are estimated

to be approximately the same as those in effect at the time of annexation for each of the
political subdivisions to which the proposed annexation applies.

Because of the relatively small size of the Annexation Area and its assessed value relative to
the total size and tax base of the various political subdivisions, this annexation is expected, for
at least four years after the effective date of this annexation, to have a negligible impact on
the finances and tax revenues of South Bend and other political subdivisions to which the
proposed annexation applies, on the political subdivisions in St. Joseph County not part of this
annexation, and on taxpayers not part of this annexation.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 5

I.    Parcel Ownership & Assessments

Parcel Identification
Assessed

Number
Address Parcel Owner Value

Total)

004-1022- 038103 23114 Lincolnway West
St. Joseph County

8,800
Airport Authority

Total Assessments

Land:      8, 800

Improvements: 0

Total ( Gross):   8,800

Total ( Net):      0

Assessments are based on 2022 payable 2023 St. Joseph County property tax records.

J.    Municipal Legislative District

The Annexation Area will be in the 1st District.

K.   Hiring Plan

This annexation is not anticipated to result in the elimination of jobs for employees of any
other governmental entities.  The German Township Trustee has been notified of this
proposed annexation.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 6

SECTION III.  MUNICIPAL SERVICES

A.       Public Works

Sewer - A 18"- diameter sanitary sewer runs along the north side of old Lincolnway West. The
pipe has available capacity, but peak flow for the site will need to be provided by the
developer for that to be confirmed.

Development of the site requires City approval of a drainage plan that meets the City' s
requirement to store all runoff from developed areas.  Connection to the City storm sewer is
not permitted.

Water- The South Bend Water Works currently has a 12" water main on the south side of old
Lincolnway West.

Extensions of or taps into sanitary sewer and water lines shall be governed by state law and
the rules and regulations of the South Bend Water Works and Sewer Utility.  The Annexation
Area may be subject to system development charges for both water and sewer services.

Streets - Annexation would add approximately 390 feet of old Lincolnway West and 330 feet
of Moss Road right-of-way to the city limits. A dedication or recorded access easement for
Moss Road would formalize access to the annexed property; yet, the Airport Authority may
eventually vacate both rights-of-way as the Airport property is fully developed.

Street Lighting - Old Lincolnway West has street lighting, but Moss Road does not.  Should
any additional street lighting be necessary, it can be provided on wood poles with overhead
wiring through an ongoing contract with Indiana Michigan Power.  If the owner wishes to
construct and dedicate additional street lighting, especially of a decorative nature or with
underground wiring, the City may accept it for maintenance and operation, supported by
property tax revenue.

Waivers of Annexation - No waivers of right to remonstrate against annexation are in effect

for this area.

2022 Actual Budget Report for the Department:

Expenditures:       29, 003, 569

Miles of Roadway in City:       @502

Cost per Mile:       @$ 57, 776

New Mileage within Area:       @0. 14 miles ( 720 feet)

Estimated Maintenance Cost

for Annexation Area per year:      @$ 8, 089



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 7

B.       Police Department

The Annexation Area would be added to the existing Beat 24.  Police patrols and emergency

responses will be part of the services the City will offer to this area. This proposed annexation
would require officers to cover a relatively small additional area on this beat.

At this time, it is not expected that this annexation would cause calls for service to increase

significantly, and it is not anticipated that it will be necessary to increase police patrols beyond
the existing beat patrol. The addition of this Annexation Area will not significantly increase
response time.

The cost of servicing the proposed area is not expected to impact the existing budget of the
Police Department with any significance. The patrol costs would be assumed by the Police
Department budget.  However, this area, as well as all other areas of the City, will continually
be monitored for level of service demands and other criteria that would necessitate additional

resources through budgetary increases or possible shifting of existing resources, such as a
beat restructure.

Police services and response time in this area can be expected to be comparable with that

found in all other areas of the City.  Police coverage to this area could begin immediately upon
annexation.

Note:  The cost of service for this Annexation Area is based on the number of parcels.
Household information is provided for comparative purposes.

2022 Actual Budget Report for the Department:

Expenditures ( including pension cost):       $ 48, 612, 569

Number of Households in City (2022):       @41, 488

Cost per Household: @$ 1, 172

Number of Parcels in City (2023):     @47, 600

Cost per Parcel:       @$ 1,021

Proposed Number of Households in Area:  0

Proposed Number of Parcels in Area: 1

Cost for Annexation Area per year:    1, 021 ( 1 parcel x $ 1, 021/ parcel)



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 8

C.       Fire Department& EMS

Fire Response - The South Bend Fire Department provides a fully staffed, full- time fire
department. The Annexation Area will be serviced primarily by Fire Station # 4 at 220 N. Olive

Street, which is approximately 2. 5 miles away. Additional Fire Department units would
respond from Fire Station # 11, located at 3505 N. Bendix Drive, approximately 3.4 miles

away.

The South Bend Fire Department does not foresee any unusual fire protection problems
related to this annexation.  Response times will be comparable to other areas of the City.  No
additional equipment will need to be purchased or personnel hired to service the Annexation
Area.  Fire coverage to this area could begin immediately upon annexation. Adequate water

supply will be necessary as any development takes place.

Emergency Medical Response - The City will provide emergency medical response to the
Annexation Area. This area will be serviced by Medic # 4, which is at Fire Station # 4 at 220 N.

Olive Street ( approximately 2. 5 miles away) and Medic # 11, which is at Fire Station # 11,

located at 3505 N. Bendix Drive ( approximately 3. 4 miles away).

Response times will be comparable to other areas of the City.  No additional equipment will

need to be purchased or personnel hired to service the Annexation Area.  Emergency medical
services are supported by user fees and would be available upon annexation.

Note:  The cost of service for this Annexation Area is based on the number of parcels.
Household information is provided for comparative purposes.

2022 Actual Budget Report for the Department:

Expenditures ( including pension cost):       $ 41,394, 980

Number of Households in City ( 2022):       @41, 488

Cost per Household: @$ 998

Number of Parcels in City (2023):     @47, 600

Cost per Parcel:       @$ 870

Proposed Number of Households in Area:  0

Proposed Number of Parcels in Area: 1

Cost for Annexation Area per year:     870 ( 1 parcel x $ 870/ parcel)



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 9

D.       Neighborhood Services & Enforcement

The Annexation Area will be added to Area 5. The Division of Neighborhood Services &

Enforcement will be able to provide services to the Annexation Area with comparable response
times.  The Division will respond to calls for service upon the effective date of the annexation.

Full and dedicated response will be in place within one year of the effective date of the
annexation.

2022 Actual Budget Report for the Division:

Expenditures:  7, 323, 118

Number of Parcels in City (2023):     @47, 600

Cost per Parcel:       @$ 154

Proposed Number of Parcels in Area: 1

Cost for Annexation Area per year:     154 ( 1 parcels x $ 154/ parcel)

E.       Environmental Services

Wastewater Treatment- Wastewater treatment services are supported by user fees and are
paid through the Water Works billing system.

Solid Waste - Larger scale commercial or industrial customers are generally not served by the
Bureau of Solid Waste.  However, the Bureau of Solid Waste can provide service to small
commercial customers at the prevailing rate at that time for a 96-gallon container with service
beginning on the effective date of the annexation.

F.       Administrative Services

The City of South Bend provides a wide range of services other than those noted above, such
as the Mayor' s Office, the Legal Department, and Venues Parks & Arts.

These services are available upon the effective date of the annexation.  Full and dedicated

response for non- capital services will be in place within one year of the effective date of the
annexation.  Costs for these services have not been calculated.

The incorporation of the Annexation Area will not affect the provision of other services
currently provided to this property on a countywide basis. The St. Joseph County Health
Department, the St. Joseph County Public Library, and the St. Joseph County/ South Bend
Building Department are among the countywide agencies that will continue to provide the
same type and level of services to the Annexation Area.  Countywide services will continue to

be supported by the County and Township taxes that will remain in effect.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 10

SECTION IV.  LAND USE ANALYSIS & DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA

This proposed annexation will add one vacant property to the City of South Bend. The
petitioner proposes to use the Annexation Area for a car wash and detailing facility for car
rental businesses at the airport. The Annexation Area is presently zoned C Commercial
District in unincorporated St. Joseph County.  The South Bend International Airport, zoned I
Industrial District in the City, is located to the north.  To the east is a hotel zoned C

Commercial District in the County.  To the south is vacant land zoned C Commercial District in
the County.  To the west is a car rental facility zoned C Commercial District in the County.

According to a preliminary site plan, the petitioner proposes an 8, 800-square foot building
with 20 parking spaces.

Any improvements or future changes must meet the City' s applicable building, zoning, and
subdivision ordinances.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 12

TABLE 1

Summary Table - Estimated Fiscal Impact

Expenditures
Capital Non Capital

Notes 5- Year Total
Est.)   Per Year ( Est.)

Street Construction 0 0

Connection at

Sewer Extension 0 petitioner' s 0

expense

Connection at

Water Extension 0 petitioner' s 0

expense

Street Lights 0 0

Street Maintenance 0 8, 089 40, 445

Police 0 1, 021 5, 105

Fire 0 870 4,350

Neighborhood
0 154 770

Services

Approximate 5-Year Expenditures 50,670

Revenues Notes Total ( Est.) 5-Year Total

Year 1 0

Year 2 0

Property Taxes
Year 3 0 0

to City)
Year 4 0

Year 5 0

MVH/ LRSA
Estimated at revenue

4, 229 21, 145
per mile of $ 30, 210

Approximate 5- Year Revenues 21, 145

While costs are calculated for the parcel included in the annexation area, this estimate likely
overstates the cost to serve it.  The parcel is anticipated to be incorporated into the existing
Airport property, which is already within the city limits.  Being government owned, the parcel
within the annexation area is presently tax exempt.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 13

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A part of the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 38 North, Range 2
East, German Township, St. Joseph County, Indiana, being more particularly described as
follows:

Beginning at the intersection of( 1) the east line extended of Parcel II, as described in Deed
Record # 0838215 in the office of the St. Joseph County Recorder, which is also the centerline
of the former Kensington Avenue, as shown on the recorded plat of Ira V. Carpenter' s
Subdivision as recorded in Book 16, Page C, and (2) the north right of way line of old
Lincolnway West; thence south along said east line extended and said centerline 318.90' to
the southeast corner of said Parcel II, which is also on the west line of land described in Deed

Record 1707578; thence West 346.5 feet to the southwest corner of said Parcel II and the

centerline of Moss Road, as shown on said Ira V. Carpenter' s Subdivision, and the east line of

land described in Deed Record # 104981; thence North along said centerline and said east
line and said east line extended a distance of 430. 10 feet to said north right of way line of old

Lincolnway West; thence Southeast along said north right of way line a distance of 389. 86
feet to the point of beginning of this description.  Containing 2. 93 acres, more or less.



Airport- Moss Annexation Area 14

MAP 1

Airport- Moss Annexation Area

0 NORTH

Q

C

t.

5

LINCOLN VYAY

8
C
g wirFTTTI1

0 250 500

Airport- Moss Annexation Area City of South Bend
Feet

Prepared by City of South Bend Department of Community Investment September 12, 2023

Filed in Clerk' s Office    '

O C T 1 6 2023 1
DAWN M. JONES

CITY CLERK, SOUTH ' r- j



Filed in Clerk's Office 

Wednesday, September 27, 2023 I. SEP 2 7 2023 I
DAWN M. JONES 

County-City Bµilding 

22 7 W. Jefferson Blvd. 1400S 

South Bend, IN 46601 

(574) 235-7627

www.southbendin.gov/zoning 

CITY CLERK, SOUTH BEND IN 

South Bend Common Council 
227 W. Jefferson Blvd., 4 th Floor 
South Bend, IN 4660 l 

Re: Bill#S0-23 - A proposed ordinance of ST JOSEPH COUNTY AIR.PORT J\UTHOR1TY to zone from 
C Commercial (St. Joseph County) to I Industrial (City), property located at 23114 US 20 Highway 
(unincorporated St. Joseph County), City of South Bend - PC# 0172-23 

Dear Council Members: 

I hereby Ce11ify that the above referenced ordinance of ST JOSEPH COUNTY AIR1)ORT AUTHORITY 
was legally advertised on September 8, 2023 and that the South Bend Plan Commission at its public 
hearing on September 18, 2023 took the fol lowing action: 

Upon a motion by Kyle Copelin, being seconded by Jason Piontek and unanimously carried, a 
proposed ordinance of ST JOSEPH COUNTY AIRJJORT AUTHORITY to zone from C Commercial 
(St. Joseph County) to I Industrial (City), property located at 23114 US 20 Highway (unincorporated 
St. Joseph County), City of South Bend, is sent to the Common Council with a FA VO RAB LE 
recommendation. 

The staff report is attached. The deliberations of the Plan Commission and points considered in arriving at 
the above decision are shown in the minutes of the public hearing, Minutes of the public hearing are 
available in our office and will be posted on our website once approved. 

Sincerely, 

f( M..,c Jlk.d I I> .1u 

Kari Myers • • --,-
---

...,_... 
Zoning Specialist 

Attachment 
CC: ST JOSEPH COUNTY AIR.PORT AUTHORITY 

Bob Palmer 

Tim Corcoran 

Planning Director 

Angela Smith 

Zoning Administrator 

Scott Ford 

Commission President 

SUBSTITUTE BILL NO. 50-63

















August 23, 2023

City of South Bend
PLAN COMMISSION

Honorable Lori Hamann
4th Floor, County-City Building
South Bend, IN 46601

RE: 23114 Lincolnway West
PC#0l72-23

Dear Ms. Hamann: 

County-City Building
227 W. Jefferson Blvd. 1400S

South Bend, IN 46601
574) 235- 7627

www.southbendin. gov/ zoning

Filed in Clerk's Office

I AUG 2 3? 023

DAWN M. JONES
CITYCLERK, SOUTH BENO, IN

Enclosed is an Ordinance forthe proposed Zone Map Amendment at the above referenced
location. Please include the attached Ordinance on the Council agenda for firstreading at your
August 28, 2023, Council meeting, and set it for public hearing at your October 23, 2023 Council
meeting. The petition is tentatively scheduled for public hearing at the September 18, 2023 South
Bend Plan Commission meeting. The recommendation of the South Bend Plan Commission will
be forwardedto the Officeof the City Clerk by noon on the day following the public hearing. 

The petitioner provided the following to describe the proposed project: 

Petitioners desire to annex and zone the property to I Industrial to allow for the development of a
carwash and detail facility forcar rental businesses at the airport. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office. 

Sincerely, 

Upn 
Angela Smith
Zoning Administrator

CC: Bob Palmer

Tim Corcoran
Planning Director

Angela Smith
Zoning Administrator

Scott Ford
Commission President

BILL NO. 50-23







RECEIVED AUG 2 1 2023

City of South Bend

Petition for Annexation and Rezoning

or Combined Public Hearing

Property Information

Tax Key Number: 71- 03- 32- 480- 004. 000- 008

Property Address: 23114 LINCOLN WAY W

Property Owner: ST JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Legal Description of Annexation Area: ( include any adjacent rights of way not already in the City)

See Attached Deed Information and Legal Description for Parcel II

Project Summary

The St Joseph County Airport Authority is developing this land into a carwash and detail facility

available to the rental car businesses that use the airport, and plan to connect to the City sanitary

sewer and municipal water.

Rezoning

County Zoning Map at ttttos. llwvwsicindianacom/ QQ6/ ZoninQM4a City Zoning Map at: hltosllsouthbendinQov/ zoning

Current Zoning District( County):
C Commercial District 0 Select One

Additional Districts, if applicable

Proposed Zoning District( City): 
I Industrial Select One

Additional Districts, if applicable

The Plan Commission and Council will consider the following in the review of a rezoning petition:

1) The comprehensive Plan;

2) Current conditions and the character of the current structures and uses in each district:

3) The most desirable use for which the land in each district is adapted:

4) The conservation of property values throughout the jurisdiction; and

5) Responsible development and growth.

Additional Requested Actions  ( check all that apply and include additional required documentation)

Subdivision - complete and attach Subdivision Application

Special Exception - complete and attach Criteria for Decision Making

0 Variance( s)- list variances below, complete and attach Criteria for Decision Making

See attached List of Requested Variances

P A 1 D

AUG 2 1 2023

Per

Page 1 of 2

f vl J



Annexation Application Checklist

1. Completed Application Form

2. Site Plan( drawn to scale)

3. Subdivision Application( if required)

4. Criteria for Decision Making ( if required)

5. Filing Fee

Contact Information

Name: Robert Heiden of JPR ( Jones Petrie Rafinski)

Address: 
325 S Lafayette Blvd

Phone Number: 
574- 323- 4388 Email: rheiden@jprl source. com

Property Owner Information  ( attach additional ownership list on separate page, if necessary)

Property Owner: ST JOSEPH COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Property Owner Address: 4477 Progress Dr, South Bend, IN 46628

Property Owner:

Property Owner Address:

By signing this petition, the Petitioner/ Property Owner( s) of the above described Real Estate acknowledge( s) they

are responcible for understanding and complying with the South Bend Zoning Ordinance and any other ordinance

governing the property. Failure of staff to notify the petitioner of a requirement does not imply approval or waiver

from anything contained within the ordinance.

The undersigned authorizes the contact person listed above to represent this petition before the South Bend Plan

Commission and Common Council and to answer any and all questions related to this petition.

44/‘////       Michael Daigle 8/ 21/ 2023

Property Owner Signature Property Owner Name Printed Date

Property Owner Signature Property Owner Name Printed Date

Completed applications should be submitted in one of the following

ways: Email: zoning® southbendin. gov

Mail: 227 W. Jefferson Blvd., Suite 1400S, South Bend, IN 46601

Page 2 of 2



List of Requested Variances

Variance to not construct public sidewalks where sidewalks are required under the I— Industrial Zoning

requirements. The reason for requesting no sidewalks is this is all airport property and there are no

pedestrians or places to walk to through this mostly vacated stretch of Lincolnway, on the south side of

the airport.

Variance to not install bicycle racks for parking, where they may be required by the ordinance. The

reason for no bicycle parking is this is a private facility that will not have customers of any kind. This

carwash, and vehicle maintenance facility, will only be accessible by rental car employees with a scan

card to take care of and service the fleet vehicles.



NI ' 0N39 Hl( lOS') 48310) LL10

S3NOC• W NMVO

I

itilE2OZEZOnd   '   0 .

J i       _

01440 s. 1-1e10 u! pale O F 0!      a MOSS RD I 3 e

O9r5
a

0 143111

i4104kill
LRw1

1.:141.21:::: i 1
p

O ; 
O

0 F

I ife 1

O /

ikt •
t//0 ; , : 

44•:,,,„.........
1

p

it

o

NT 10. 010101. 00

I` 
ill

1

gF
Ii:

e x 3
R'   

p

le

E

55 g g

i iiii ii S ©©©
O© 0000 000 b

1i°     ! P% D i 124     €     ii€ 41`     , 77 T.   E ..

0 rn8 i @ :  itig

8 I1 ° 1

33  ;
1;   iEFi11imd :   

g pg- pI
if 5

4 1 g  • igi 1 € s t R
4H!  0111 1

5E      £3a

k
I I Q    $ C ', s:  

a
11 b

f
x

f

g'  G

e

5 9 i g e: r   ,• e

YYY

a w 3 3 3 9
g 9 S 9 ? 3 9 w ?

j R 5 ale

g g"   eq' _ £      " 
w ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !      !

i 8 ® b
d ' 

BQ686B659    ' n P

9aB iit
6H Y6YY683 88

8E8iibi'1 l

FS

1 Y    $  
i SOUTH BEND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

1  "       £   
CAR WASH SITE PLANS L.  

y ` 

J 0 N E s

a fETRIE

n

SOUTH KENO INTERNATIONALA T   +

y, 

f
RIS

J...     
RAfINSKI

q ++.    sr

s. r_`•

t

SITE DIMENSIONAL PLAN e1'     

e.., m"     "  •++















October 17, 2023 

City of South Bend 

PLAN COMMISSION 

Honorable Committee Chair Hamann 
4th Floor, County-City Building
South Bend, IN 46601 

RE: 1023 QUIMBY STREET - PC#0183-23 

Dear Committee Chair Hamann: 

County-City Building 

227 W. Jefferson Blvd. 1400S 

South Bend, IN 46601 

(574) 235-7627

www.southbendin.gov/zoning 

CIT 

r ,led in Clerk's omce

�
1

.
�Zo?J

DA' , M. JONES 
r, rr co ;� UT�_B�ND, IN

Enclosed is an Ordinance for the proposed Zone Map Amendment at the above referenced 
location. Please include the attached Ordinance on the Council agenda for first reading at your 
October 23, 2023, Council meeting, and set it for public hearing at your December 11, 2023

L 

Council meeting, The petition is tentatively scheduled for public hearing at the November 20, 
2023, South Bend Plan Commission meeting. The recommendation of the South Bend Plan 
Commission will be forwarded to the Office of the City Clerk by noon on the day following the 
public hearing. 

The petitioner provided the following to describe the proposed project: 

To rezone the eastern half of the adjacent vacated alley from UF Urban Flex to U1 Urban 
Neighborhood 1 to match the parcel's zoning designation. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office, 

Sincerely, 

Kari Myers 
Zoning Specialist 

CC: Bob Palmer 

Tim Corcoran 

Planning Director 

Angela Smith 

Zoning Administrator 

Scott Ford 

Commission President 

BILL NO. 74-23











BILL NO. 75-23



Filed in Clerk' s Office i
BILL NO. 75- 23 OCT 19 2023

ORDINANCE NO. 10989- 23 DAWN M, JONES
CITY CLERK, SOUTH REND,

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND,

INDIANA, AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 900

S FRANKLIN COUNCILMANIC DISTRICT NO. 4 IN THE CITY OF SOUTH BEND,

INDIANA

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND INTENT

Petitioners desire to rezone the property from S1 Suburban Neighborhood 1 to U1 Urban
Neighborhood 1.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Common Council of the City of South Bend,
Indiana, as follows:

SECTION I.   Ordinance No.  10689- 19, which ordinance is commonly known as the
Zoning Ordinance of the City of South Bend, Indiana, be and the same hereby amended in order
that the zoning classification of the following described real estate in the City of South Bend, St.
Joseph County, State of Indiana:

LOT NUMBERED THREE ( 3) AND FOUR ( 4) AS SHOWN ON THE RECORDED

PLAT OF SAM WILLIAMS ADDITION, AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF SOUTH

BEND, AS RECORDED NOVEMBER 4, 1954, IN PLAT BOOK 19, PAGE W OF THE

RECORDS OF SAID COUNTY IN ST. JOSEPH COUNTY, INDIANA

COMMONLY KNOWN AS 1119 N TWYCKENHAM DRIVE

be and the same is hereby established as Urban Neighborhood 1.

SECTION II.  This ordinance is and shall be subject to commitments as provided by
Chapter 21- 12. 070)( 7) Commitments, if applicable.

SECTION III. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
by the Common Council and approval by the Mayor, and legal publication, and full execution of
any conditions or Commitments placed upon the approval.

Sharon McBride, Council President

South Bend Common Council

Attest:



Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk

Presented by me, the undersigned Clerk of the City of South Bend, to the Mayor of the
City of South Bend, Indiana on the day of 2023, at

o' clock      . m.

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk

Approved and signed by me on the day of 2023, at o' clock

m.

James Mueller, Mayor

City of South Bend, Indiana

Filed in Clerk' s Office

OCT 19 2023

DAWN q--

CITY Ci BEND, IN

2 -







TRANSFORMATION 
MINISTRIES 

1101 King str I South Bend, IN 46616 

574.299-3935 

orlandomendez@Transformation5 8 .com 

TO: South Bend Indiana Clerk's Office 
SUBJECT: Alley/Street Vacation: East/West Street at 1101 King St. from Kessler Blvd. 

To Whom It May Concern, 

Transformation Ministries, a nonprofit based in Keller Park, is petitioning to vacate the east/west 
street at 1101 King St. from Kessler Blvd. As part of its mission to mentor the youth of South 
Bend through meaningful work, Transformation Ministries runs a lawncare and landscaping 
business that uses the 1101 King St. property to store its trucks, trailers, and other equipment. 
The vacation of the alley specified in this petition will: 

1. Ensure our staff and the youth we employ are able to consistently back our trucks and
trailers into our storage facilities. (When the alley is occupied by other vehicles or
objects, it is impossible for us to adequately maneuver the equipment needed to provide
our services).

2. Provide a solid surface on which to place our dumpsters, as mandated by the Health
Department.

We have received a favorable recommendation for our petition from the Board of Public Works 
and have already implemented their stipulations of 1) maintaining unobstructed access the fire 
hydrant; 2) leaving a three-foot clear space around the fire hydrant's circumference; and 3) 
prohibiting parking within 15 feet of the fire hydrant (see photo on the next page). 

Thank you for your consideration, and please let us know if you have any additional questions or 
concerns. 

Sincerely, 

K--/✓�
Orlando Mendez 

Director of Facilities and Hospitality 

BILL NO. 62-23



O

BILL NO. 62- 23

ORDINANCE NO. 10976- 23
Q     , J

s 

0

AN ORDINANCE TO VACATE THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PRO R    :

Part of the South Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 38 re
Range 2 East of the 2nd Principal Meridian, Portage Township, St. Joseph Cou ty,
Indiana being more particularly described as follows:
Commencing at the Northeast corner of Lot 49 on the recorded plat of Northwest
Addition 2nd plat in the Office of the Recorder of St. Joseph County, Indiana; thence
South 90° 00' 00" East along the Southerly right of way line of McCartney Street, a
distance of 72.90 feet; thence South 0° 05' 13" East a distance of 269.55 feet to the

Northerly right-of-way line of King Street and the point of beginning of this
description; thence continuing South 0°05' 13" East a distance of 60.00 feet to the
Southerly right-of-way line of said King Street; thence South 90°00'00" West along
said Southerly right-of-way line a distance of 64. 00 feet; thence North 0° 05' 13" West
a distance of 60. 00 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line of said King Street; thence
North 90°00' 00" East along the said Northerly right-of-way line a distance of 64. 00
feet to the point of beginning of this description.
Containing 3, 840 Square Feet

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND INTENT

Pursuant to Indiana Code Section 36- 7- 3- 12, the Common Council is charged with

the authority to hear all petitions to vacate public ways or public places within the City.
The following Ordinance vacates the above described public property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF SOUTH BEND, INDIANA, as follows:

SECTION I. The Common Council of the City of South Bend having held a Public
Hearing on the petition to vacate the following property:

Part of the South Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 38 North,
Range 2 East of the 2nd Principal Meridian, Portage Township, St. Joseph County,
Indiana being more particularly described as follows:
Commencing at the Northeast corner of Lot 49 on the recorded plat of Northwest
Addition 2nd plat in the Office of the Recorder of St. Joseph County, Indiana; thence
South 90° 00'00" East along the Southerly right of way line of McCartney Street, a
distance of 72. 90 feet; thence South 0° 05' 13" East a distance of 269.55 feet to the

Northerly right-of-way line of King Street and the point of beginning of this
description; thence continuing South 0° 05' 13" East a distance of 60. 00 feet to the
Southerly right-of-way line of said King Street; thence South 90° 00'00" West along
said Southerly right-of-way line a distance of 64. 00 feet; thence North 0°05' 13" West
a distance of 60. 00 feet to the Northerly right- of-way line of said King Street; thence
North 90° 00' 00" East along the said Northerly right-of-way line a distance of 64. 00
feet to the point of beginning of this description.
Containing 3, 840 Square Feet

hereby determines that it is desirable to vacate said property.



SECTION II. The City of South Bend hereby reserves the rights and easements of
all utilities and the Municipal City of South Bend, Indiana, to construct and maintain any
facilities, including, but not limited to, the following: electric, telephone, gas, water, sewer,
surface water control structures and ditches, within the vacated right-of-way, unless such
rights are released by the individual utilities.

SECTION III. The following property may be injuriously or beneficially affected by
such vacating:

Parcel ID 018- 2168- 6182 and 018- 2110- 4067

Section IV. The purpose of the vacation of the real property is

The adjoining owner to the north, Transformation Ministries, plans to use the vacated
right of way of King Street to secure access to the east portion of the building.
Maintenance equipment, trailers and the owner' s vehicles will be stored in the

building. This will allow the owner to access the this area of the building without any
obstructions.

SECTION V. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its

Passage by the Common Council and approval by the Mayor



Sharon McBride, Council President

South Bend Common Council

Attest:

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk

Presented by me, the undersigned Clerk of the City of South Bend, to the Mayor of the City
of South Bend, Indiana on the day of 2023, at

o' clock_. m.

Dawn M. Jones, City Clerk
Office of the City Clerk

Approved and signed by me on the day of 2023, at o' clock

m.

James Mueller, Mayor

City of South Bend, Indiana

Cleric' s C ff:';:Filed in

SEP 1 B 2023 i,    ' 1,

Revised September 27, 2022



riled• in Clerk' sOffice 1

SEP 18 2023 Pi I
cowl M.     

o   •   CITY CLERK OUT
ES v   —

1 0 00
IN

I I I I 72. 90'

rthwethwest Additionnd2Plotst

c0 in d'   r7 N O 0)  

IL
Northwest A dition 2 d Plot o

0

N in
N

1 op

o
ft a.       I o

1 co LLI

J

I Icr0_ 00
O

IZ     .   
Q

J I

I

J I J
1

J J . d J J o_ o
d

O
I 1

H 5
J

e

c
r

P. O. B.

j 1 o

i I 64. 00'\
ill.,

o s ; oo +   

N.  —    —   73" W 60. 00' o
LO 0

i op  : i..      
0.

4 0 73.5'     

mai5-vc- 0 —  O

64. 00'

i
I oI y CANT

II
O0 M coN I

o Ln co

2"   
J J O O 1

1J

o \       

H
J

oC\       

iiim37
GRAPHIC SCALE

KING STREET RIGHT OF WAY VACATION

All4

TRANSFORMATION MINISTRIES,  INC.
1101 KING STREET,  SOUTH BEND 2810 Dexter Drive

Elkhart, IN 46514 SHEET 1
r•      SCALE: 1" = 60'   Phone: 574- 266- 1010 OF 1

ENGINEER: DEBRA S. HUGHES P. E.     Email: infoOsam. biz

Z ECHNICIAN: AKM
DRAWING: 1022068741- DESIGN. DWG JOB NUMBER: 1022068741
























